
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

ZONING BORAD OF APPEALS 
AGENDA 

June 29, 2021 

Zoning Board of Appeals   
6:00 PM  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 
a. Zoning Board of Appeals Case No. 5939 (2800 

Fallston, LLC and Dolgencorp, LLC)  
 
2.  FINAL ARGUMENT  

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 

Council Chambers - 212 South Bond Street, Bel Air, MD 21014 

www.HarfordCountyCouncil.com 

To request disability-related accommodations to participate in this meeting, please contact Jeannette Castronova at 410-638-3343 as soon as possible. 
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·1· · · · · · · · · A P P E A R A N C E

·2

·3· ·HEARING EXAMINER:

·4· ·HARFORD COUNTY, MARYLAND
· · ·By:· Robert F. Kahoe, Jr., Esq.
·5· · · · 212 South Bond Street
· · · · · Bel Air, Maryland 21014
·6

·7
· · ·DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING
·8· ·By:· David Culver, Planner
· · · · · 220 S. Main Street
·9· · · · Bel Air, Maryland 21014
· · · · · dculver@harfordcountymd.gov
10· · · · Telephone: 410-638-3103

11

12· ·ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT:

13· ·SHAFFER, McLAUCHLIN & STOVER, LLC
· · ·By:· Bradley R. Stover, Esq.
14· · · · 836 South Main Street
· · · · · Suite 102
15· · · · Bel Air, Maryland 21014
· · · · · brad@smslawoffice.com
16· · · · Telephone: 410-420-7992

17

18· ·ON BEHALF OF THE OFFICE OF PEOPLE'S COUNSEL:

19· ·LAW OFFICE OF BRIAN YOUNG
· · ·By:· Brian Young, Esq.
20· · · · 808 South Main Street
· · · · · Bel Air, Maryland 21014
21· · · · brianyoung@harfordlaw.com
· · · · · Telephone: 410-836-8836
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·1· · · · · · · · P R O C E E D I N G S

·2

·3· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· This is Board of

·4· ·Appeals' Case No. 5939.· 2800 Fallston LLC and

·5· ·Co-Applicant Dolgencorp, LLC.

·6· · · · · · The request was originally for four

·7· ·variances.· I believe that has been modified.· The

·8· ·only request before us tonight is one requested

·9· ·variance to allow a sign, a wall sign, and which I

10· ·believe is a sign to be over the front of the

11· ·building; the wall is to be 50 square feet, which

12· ·exceeds the statutory limitation of 10 square feet.

13· ·So the variance to that requirement of a wall sign

14· ·is only to be 10 square feet.· The Applicant is

15· ·asking for a variance to allow a 50-square-foot

16· ·sign.

17· · · · · · When you speak, I'd ask everybody to speak

18· ·slowly, so the court reporter can take the comments

19· ·down.· We are being recorded, of course, by

20· ·GoToMeeting.· But the court reporter is also taking

21· ·everything down, which is required by rule.
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·1· · · · · · Counsel?· Mr. Stover, anything

·2· ·preliminarily?

·3· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Nothing preliminarily, Mr.

·4· ·Kahoe.

·5· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Young?

·6· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Nothing preliminarily.

·7· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, counsel.

·8· ·Mr. Stover, do you want to start?

·9· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Sure.· Thank you, Mr.

10· ·Kahoe.

11· · · · · · For the record, Bradley R. Stover for the

12· ·Applicants, who you've identified as 2800 Fallston,

13· ·LLC and Dolgencorp, LLC.

14· · · · · · As you've indicated, we're here on a

15· ·variance for a sign to be located on a Dollar

16· ·General store at 2800 Fallston Road, in Fallston,

17· ·Maryland.

18· · · · · · This property is intending to be and is in

19· ·the process of being developed as a Dollar General

20· ·store, which is a permitted use under the Village

21· ·Business zoning set forth in 267-58 of the Code.
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·1· · · · · · I do want to stress that we're not here

·2· ·tonight seeking for any code relief with respect to

·3· ·the use itself; in other words, the building.

·4· · · · · · The Applicant absolutely intends to comply

·5· ·with the provisions of 267-58, which have the

·6· ·regulations for the development of properties within

·7· ·the VB, or Village Business District.

·8· · · · · · Specifically, we intend to comply with all

·9· ·lot area and setback requirements, landscaping

10· ·requirements, buffer yard requirements, signage,

11· ·other than as we're going to discuss tonight, the

12· ·plan requirements and particular to the Village

13· ·Business District, architectural design approval

14· ·requirements for new building construction in the

15· ·VB.· We're not seeking in any way, shape, or form

16· ·for a variance from those provisions.

17· · · · · · With respect to the permitted use, in fact,

18· ·Mr. Kahoe and all involved, we have already had a

19· ·community input meeting and plans have been

20· ·submitted to the County and are going through the

21· ·Development Advisory Committee review process.
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·1· · · · · · That process has been robust.· Certainly

·2· ·community members have participated in fairly large

·3· ·numbers at both the community input meeting and the

·4· ·DAC meeting.· And I think that participation is

·5· ·evidenced tonight.

·6· · · · · · Based on many of the concerns that were

·7· ·heard -- again, I'm speaking only solely towards

·8· ·tonight's proceedings -- there was initially an

·9· ·application for four variances from the sign code.

10· · · · · · Initially, the Applicants were going to

11· ·seek a variance from the sign code provisions in the

12· ·Village Business District with respect to height for

13· ·a free-standing sign.· That has been withdrawn.

14· · · · · · With respect to the face size of a

15· ·free-standing sign, that has been withdrawn with

16· ·respect to the location for a free-standing sign.

17· ·That has been withdrawn.

18· · · · · · With respect to any free-standing signage

19· ·that the Applicants intend to install on their

20· ·property, they will comply with the provisions of

21· ·the Code without need for any variance.
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·1· · · · · · That leaves us with one variance request.

·2· ·And that request has been modified or amended from

·3· ·the original application.· Initially, the Applicants

·4· ·sought a variance from the 10-square-foot Code

·5· ·requirement to allow a 149-square-foot sign.

·6· · · · · · As you will hear this evening, we have

·7· ·amended that by two-thirds really, down to about 50

·8· ·feet.· Again, a lot of that is because the community

·9· ·has been very robust in their participation.· That

10· ·was the reason for trying to scale back on some of

11· ·those requests.

12· · · · · · Tonight, I intend to call David Taylor, as

13· ·an expert witness, to testify regarding this

14· ·request.

15· · · · · · He will offer testimony to support the

16· ·Applicants' case and meet the burden of proof for

17· ·tonight for the sign variance, which mainly would be

18· ·that strict provision of the Code requirements for

19· ·signage on buildings in the Village Business

20· ·District would create a hardship.· I'm going to have

21· ·Mr. Taylor testify to meet the burden.
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·1· · · · · · The case tonight will essentially be that

·2· ·the hardship is caused by the existence of an over

·3· ·100-foot State Highway right-of-way in between the

·4· ·paved road of Maryland Route 152 and the proposed

·5· ·use and the sign located on that use.

·6· · · · · · Mr. Taylor will testify that the Applicant

·7· ·did not cause any of these hardships, and he will

·8· ·testify that the property is unique due to its

·9· ·configuration, the existing right-of-way and the

10· ·fact that the existing parking lot on the building

11· ·is going -- excuse me -- the property is going to be

12· ·used in conjunction with an adaptive reuse.

13· · · · · · So with that, Mr. Kahoe, I will call Mr.

14· ·Taylor as my first witness.· Let me swing my camera

15· ·around, so he can be sworn in.

16· · · · · · Just a second.

17· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Hold on for a

18· ·second.· Let's try to do this as a group.

19· · · · · · Anybody who's listening in, who they may --

20· ·he or she may want to testify this evening, please

21· ·raise your right hand, at this point, and we'll have
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·1· ·everybody sworn in as a group.

·2· · · · · · If you think you'll testify, just raise

·3· ·your right hand.· We'll get it out of the way.

·4· · · · · · Everybody has got their right hand up?

·5· ·Ann, you're on.

·6· · · · · · · · (Witnesses Sworn.)

·7· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. STOVER:

·8· · · · Q.· Mr. Taylor, your name and address, for the

·9· ·record, please, sir.

10· · · · A.· Yes.· My name is David Taylor.· I live at

11· ·163 Bruce Woods Court in Abingdon, Maryland.

12· · · · Q.· And what is your occupation, Mr. Taylor?

13· · · · A.· I am a licensed, professional civil

14· ·engineer involved with land development, planning

15· ·and engineering.

16· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, it's my intent

17· ·this evening to offer Mr. Taylor as an expert in the

18· ·field of land use development with expertise in the

19· ·Harford County Zoning Code.· I am prepared to

20· ·qualify him as such, or I am prepared to offer his

21· ·exhibit -- excuse me -- his resume as the
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·1· ·Applicants' Exhibit No. 1.

·2· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· There is no objection to

·3· ·that, Your Honor.

·4· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Young, are you

·5· ·okay?

·6· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No objection.

·7· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, Mr.

·8· ·Young.· Mr. Stover, Mr. Taylor has testified before

·9· ·the Board on numerous occasions before as an expert

10· ·in land use development, with expertise in the

11· ·Harford County Zoning Code and development

12· ·regulations.

13· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Thank you, Mr. Kahoe.· And

14· ·I did upload with Ms. Smith, Mr. Taylor's CV, so

15· ·that should be within the documents.· And I would

16· ·offer that as the Applicants' Exhibit No. 1.

17· · · · Q.· (Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, are you familiar

18· ·with the property that is the subject of tonight's

19· ·application?

20· · · · A.· Yes, I am.

21· · · · Q.· And have you physically visited the
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·1· ·property?

·2· · · · A.· Many times.

·3· · · · Q.· And what's the most recent occasion that

·4· ·you've visited the property?

·5· · · · A.· I was out there visiting yesterday.

·6· · · · Q.· Did you in your capacity as an engineer for

·7· ·the Applicants prepare a plan for this evening's

·8· ·application?

·9· · · · A.· I did.

10· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· And, Mr. Kahoe, if you

11· ·allow me to share my screen, I will pull up that

12· ·plan.

13· · · · · · Does everybody see that?

14· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· No.

15· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· How about now?

16· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· We got it.

17· · · · Q.· You got it?

18· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· You got it.

19· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· If I could just interject

20· ·for one moment.

21· · · · · · For anyone who is viewing this on Zoom,
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·1· ·there should now be a bar in the middle of your

·2· ·screen.· The top part of it probably has got a whole

·3· ·bunch of little tiles of peoples' faces and the

·4· ·bottom has a plan.

·5· · · · · · If you grab the bar and drag it up, you can

·6· ·switch the ratio, so you might actually be able to

·7· ·see.

·8· · · · · · Thank you, Mr. Stover.

·9· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Thank you.· I can maybe

10· ·zoom it in, in theory.

11· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, is this the

12· ·plan that you've prepared for this evening's

13· ·hearing?

14· · · · A.· It is.

15· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, again, I

16· ·provided this to Ms. Smith via the Dropbox.· I would

17· ·offer Mr. Taylor's site plan as the Applicants'

18· ·Exhibit No. 2.

19· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· I have a copy of it.

20· ·It's in the file.· I will accept it as Exhibit 2.

21· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Briefly, Mr. Taylor, what
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·1· ·is the Applicants' intended use for this property?

·2· · · · A.· This is the redevelopment of an existing

·3· ·piece of property for a Dollar General store.

·4· · · · Q.· And what is the zoning classification for

·5· ·this property?

·6· · · · A.· VB; Village Business.

·7· · · · Q.· And is the Dollar General store a permitted

·8· ·use in the VB District?

·9· · · · A.· It is.

10· · · · Q.· And, specifically, is it defined under the

11· ·Code as a shoppers merchandise store?

12· · · · A.· Yes.

13· · · · Q.· Just touching on the parcel, generally, to

14· ·set the background, what is the size of the parcel?

15· · · · A.· 1.43 acres.

16· · · · Q.· How are the adjacent properties improved

17· ·and used?

18· · · · A.· Well, we have residential -- a large size

19· ·residential property to the west.· That's on the

20· ·left side of the plan.· And then to the south, also

21· ·residential.· On the opposite side of Baldwin Mill
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·1· ·Road, it's a bank.· And on the opposite side of 152,

·2· ·it's a Savory Deli store, and catty-corner is a

·3· ·small shopping center.

·4· · · · Q.· And expanding beyond the adjacent

·5· ·properties, can you generally describe this

·6· ·neighborhood area?

·7· · · · A.· Yes.· This area is comprised of mixed uses;

·8· ·again, large-lot single family homes, some personal

·9· ·uses to the south on Baldwin Mill Road and also

10· ·commercial uses, again, on each one of the opposite

11· ·corners of the intersection.

12· · · · Q.· And describe the road network around the

13· ·subject property.

14· · · · A.· This property fronts Fallston Road,

15· ·Maryland Route 152, as well as Baldwin Mill Road.

16· ·The two intersect sort of east, west, north and

17· ·south.

18· · · · Q.· And both 152 and 165 are State roads?

19· · · · A.· They are.

20· · · · Q.· Specific to Maryland Route 152, does a

21· ·State Highway Administration right-of-way exist
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·1· ·beyond the paved road?

·2· · · · A.· Yes, it does.

·3· · · · Q.· And where on the plan can that be seen?

·4· · · · A.· Well, it's a large area of open space

·5· ·really between the road and the property line, which

·6· ·is approximately 110 feet from the road to the

·7· ·parking lot.

·8· · · · Q.· And this being a right-of-way, it cannot be

·9· ·developed by the Applicants, is that correct?

10· · · · A.· That's correct.· That a right-of-way for

11· ·any future potential road improvements by State

12· ·Highway.

13· · · · Q.· How is this property being used currently?

14· · · · A.· It's currently a sales area for Amish

15· ·sheds.

16· · · · Q.· And are there any improvements on the

17· ·property in connection with those sales?

18· · · · A.· Sure.· There are some improvements; two

19· ·entrances off of 152 and one off Baldwin Mill,

20· ·accessing an existing parking lot.

21· · · · Q.· And prior to the Amish shed sales -- say
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·1· ·that fast three times -- how was the property used?

·2· · · · A.· It was at one time a gasoline station.

·3· · · · Q.· Approximately, how long was it a gasoline

·4· ·station?

·5· · · · A.· I believe it was filled around 1986 and it

·6· ·was removed in the early 2000s.

·7· · · · Q.· And do any improvements from the gas

·8· ·station still remain on the property?

·9· · · · A.· What is out there right now is -- are

10· ·vestiges, I guess, of the Exxon gas station, which

11· ·includes three entrances.· The parking lot; you can

12· ·still see some residual building pad/slabs as well.

13· · · · Q.· With respect to the parking lot, is it the

14· ·Applicants' intention to essentially reuse that

15· ·existing parking lot in conjunction with its

16· ·project?

17· · · · A.· Yes.· That is actually the idea.· We want

18· ·to try to make use of the existing infrastructure to

19· ·the extent possible.

20· · · · Q.· Same question with respect to the access

21· ·points.· Will any of those be used for the proposed
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·1· ·Dollar General?

·2· · · · A.· Two out of the three are proposed to be

·3· ·used.· We want to eliminate the one closest to the

·4· ·intersection.

·5· · · · Q.· Where on the property will the Dollar

·6· ·General building be located?

·7· · · · A.· It is to be located, approximately, where

·8· ·the old gasoline station building pads were.

·9· · · · Q.· And the frontage of the building, which

10· ·road will the building front?

11· · · · A.· It will front 152.

12· · · · Q.· What's the square footage of the proposed

13· ·building?

14· · · · A.· 9,100 square feet.

15· · · · Q.· What's the distance or what will the

16· ·distance from the road be?

17· · · · A.· We are proposing to put the building

18· ·approximately 190 feet from Maryland 152 to the

19· ·front of the building.· It would be approximately

20· ·100 feet from the southeast corner, I guess it would

21· ·be, or northeast corner to Baldwin Mill Road from
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·1· ·the corner of the building.

·2· · · · Q.· And the Applicants, are they currently

·3· ·going through the Development Advisory Committee

·4· ·process for approvals for this building in

·5· ·development of the site?

·6· · · · A.· They are actively engaged in working with

·7· ·the DAC review.

·8· · · · Q.· So that process is ongoing?

·9· · · · A.· It is.

10· · · · Q.· There was a Community Input Meeting held?

11· · · · A.· It was.

12· · · · Q.· I'm going to show you a series of

13· ·photographs.

14· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Everybody see the first

15· ·photograph I pulled up?

16· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) I'm going to show you a

17· ·series of photographs that I will purport are

18· ·photographs of the four uses at the intersection of

19· ·152 and 165.

20· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Again, Mr. Kahoe, they

21· ·were provided to Ms. Smith to be put in the Dropbox.
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·1· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, can you tell us

·2· ·what this first photograph depicts?

·3· · · · A.· Yes.· What we're looking at here is the

·4· ·BB&T, which is to the east of the Dollar General

·5· ·store site.

·6· · · · · · Here, we're basically standing in the

·7· ·intersection of 152 and 165, looking at the shopping

·8· ·center which is at the corner of the -- I would say

·9· ·that's the northeast corner of that intersection.

10· · · · Q.· I'm showing you the next photograph.

11· · · · A.· Here, again, standing in the intersection,

12· ·looking north up 165 towards the Savory Deli.

13· · · · Q.· And these three photographs and the uses

14· ·that you have shown, do all have --

15· · · · · · · · (Video feed disturbance.)

16· · · · A.· Some free-standing signs there with the

17· ·Savory Deli.

18· · · · Q.· And then the last photo.· If you could

19· ·describe this last photo.

20· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Kahoe, I have lost the

21· ·feed.
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·1· · · · A.· Shows the entrance to 152 as well the

·2· ·parking --

·3· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Stover and Mr. Kahoe, I

·4· ·have lost the feed.· I'm not sure if anybody has or

·5· ·not.

·6· · · · · · · · (Reporter comment.)

·7· · · · · · · · (Last answer read.)

·8· · · · · · · · (Discussion off record.)

·9· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Stover is having

10· ·technical issues and just sent a chat that he will

11· ·log out and log back in to try to fix the sound

12· ·feed.

13· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· The photo now would

14· ·be number 6, which would be of the lot, the

15· ·unimproved lot of the subject property.

16· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Let me pull that back up.

17· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Going back to this photo,

18· ·if you could identify what this photograph depicts.

19· · · · A.· So we're looking at the subject property,

20· ·the entrance closest to the intersection as well as

21· ·the parking lot in the background.
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·1· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, those four

·2· ·photos were uploaded with Ms. Smith.· I would offer

·3· ·those as the Applicants' Exhibit Nos.· 3, 4, 5, 6.

·4· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No objection to that.

·5· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, Mr.

·6· ·Young.· I accept the photographs, Mr. Stover.

·7· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, the Applicants

·8· ·now seek a variance for the size of the sign to be

·9· ·located on the proposed building, is that correct?

10· · · · A.· Yes.

11· · · · Q.· Does 267-33(I)(5) of the Code set forth

12· ·requirements in the VB with respect to a sign on a

13· ·building?

14· · · · A.· It does.

15· · · · Q.· And what are those requirements?

16· · · · A.· A wall sign for each use shall be attached

17· ·to the front of the building and adjacent to the

18· ·front entryway no larger than 10 square feet.

19· · · · Q.· And do the Applicants propose that the sign

20· ·be attached to the front of their building?

21· · · · A.· Yes.

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880

ZONING CASE NO. 5939 ZONING HEARING
February 24, 2021

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880
YVer1f



Page 22
·1· · · · Q.· And do the Applicants propose that the sign

·2· ·be located adjacent to the front entryway?

·3· · · · A.· Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· So really the only variance they're seeking

·5· ·from the Code is to have a sign in excess of 10

·6· ·square feet, is that correct?

·7· · · · A.· That's correct.

·8· · · · Q.· You mention it was 10 feet per use.

·9· · · · · · What is your understanding of why the sign

10· ·code indicates per use?

11· · · · A.· Well, if it was to be developed as a

12· ·shopping center, there would be multiple uses; each

13· ·use would be allowed to have 10 square feet.

14· · · · Q.· The Applicants, to be clear tonight,

15· ·though, are not seeking to develop this property as

16· ·a shopping center, is that correct?

17· · · · A.· Yes.

18· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Let me interrupt,

19· ·Mr. Stover.· Everybody is looking at a screen.· It's

20· ·a GoToMeeting screen.

21· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Sorry.· I'm getting ready
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·1· ·to pull up my very next --

·2· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Sorry.· Okay.· Go

·3· ·ahead.

·4· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Can everybody see the

·5· ·architectural rendering?

·6· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Yes, we do.

·7· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, have the

·8· ·Applicants prepared an architectural rendering

·9· ·showing their hope for a sign on the Dollar General

10· ·building?

11· · · · A.· They have.

12· · · · Q.· And we're looking at what's pulled up on

13· ·the screen.

14· · · · · · Is this a true and accurate copy of that

15· ·architectural rendering?

16· · · · A.· Yes, it is.

17· · · · Q.· And does this rendering, again, show that

18· ·the sign would be located near the front entryway of

19· ·the proposed building?

20· · · · A.· Yes, it does.

21· · · · Q.· And is it on the front of the proposed
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·1· ·building?

·2· · · · A.· It is.

·3· · · · Q.· And does this also indicate the square feet

·4· ·of the proposed signage?

·5· · · · A.· It does.· I think it's on there but

·6· ·covered.

·7· · · · · · There it is; on the right side of the plan.

·8· · · · Q.· It says 48 square feet, right?

·9· · · · A.· Correct.

10· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, this was

11· ·downloaded and given to Ms. Smith for purposes of

12· ·downloading it.· And we would offer this as the

13· ·Applicants' Exhibit No. 7.

14· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· All right.· If there

15· ·is no objection, I will accept No. 7.

16· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, have the

17· ·Applicants also prepared a rendering showing what

18· ·the sign would look like on a Dollar General

19· ·building, adhering to the 10-foot requirement?

20· · · · A.· Yes, they have.

21· · · · · · · · (Share Screen.)
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·1· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) We're looking at the

·2· ·screen.

·3· · · · · · Is this a true and accurate copy of that

·4· ·architectural rendering?

·5· · · · A.· It is.

·6· · · · Q.· And, again, this shows a sign that is

·7· ·sightly less than 10 square feet and will be

·8· ·permitted by code, is that correct?

·9· · · · A.· That's correct.

10· · · · Q.· And it shows the sign being located near

11· ·the front entryway?

12· · · · A.· Yes.

13· · · · Q.· And does it show the sign being located on

14· ·the frontage of the building?

15· · · · A.· Yes.

16· · · · Q.· And based on this drawing, is the sign when

17· ·constructed to the 10-foot requirement code, is it

18· ·difficult to see?

19· · · · A.· It is difficult.

20· · · · Q.· And is this in fact the driver for why the

21· ·Applicants seek to enlarge the size of the sign?
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·1· · · · A.· It is.· It's difficult to see, particularly

·2· ·at a great distance.

·3· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, I would offer

·4· ·this rendering as the Applicants' Exhibit No. 8.

·5· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Number 8 accepted.

·6· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, did you and

·7· ·several representatives of the Applicants go on-site

·8· ·and take some photographs depicting what the

·9· ·proposed sign and current allowed size would look

10· ·like?

11· · · · A.· Yes, we did.

12· · · · Q.· I will pull those up.

13· · · · · · · · (Share Screen.)

14· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· Excuse me for a

15· ·minute.· Can we have any say about any of this, or

16· ·do we have to wait our turn to talk.

17· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Goff, you're

18· ·going to have to wait your turn.

19· · · · · · · · MR. GOFF:· I hear this "No objection."

20· ·But we are objecting.· But we have to wait our turn

21· ·to say anything?
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·1· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· You're going to have

·2· ·to wait your turn.· You will have an opportunity to

·3· ·say whatever you want to say related to this case.

·4· · · · · · Anybody and everybody participating this

·5· ·evening will have plenty of time to tell me what

·6· ·they want to say.

·7· · · · · · Right now, you're going to sit back and

·8· ·listen to what's being said.

·9· · · · · · Mr. Stover, ask your question, again.

10· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, you and several

11· ·representatives of the Applicants went on-site to

12· ·take some photographs of what the sign would like

13· ·from the road, from 152, is that right?

14· · · · A.· Yes, we did.

15· · · · Q.· I'm showing you, first, a photograph.

16· · · · · · Mr. Taylor, are you in this photograph?

17· · · · A.· I am one of the individuals holding up a

18· ·sign.

19· · · · Q.· Is one of the representatives of the

20· ·Applicants the person taking this picture?

21· · · · A.· Yes.
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·1· · · · Q.· And the sign you see there, is that the

·2· ·sign as it would be permitted; in other words, the

·3· ·10-foot square sign?

·4· · · · A.· Yes, that is the 10-foot square foot sign.

·5· · · · Q.· And from where on the property is this

·6· ·photograph taken?

·7· · · · A.· This photograph was taken roughly midway in

·8· ·the grassed, open area between the highway and the

·9· ·parking lot.

10· · · · Q.· Okay.· So near the entrance.

11· · · · A.· Yes.

12· · · · · · · · (Share Screen.)

13· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Again, I will show you a

14· ·photograph.· It's going to be difficult for

15· ·everybody to see.

16· · · · · · But is this a photograph, also, depicting

17· ·the 10 square foot sign that would be permitted by

18· ·code?

19· · · · A.· It is, in fact.

20· · · · Q.· And, again, difficult to see.

21· · · · · · But can you describe where you are standing

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880

ZONING CASE NO. 5939 ZONING HEARING
February 24, 2021

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880
YVer1f



Page 29
·1· ·with the sign in this picture?

·2· · · · A.· Well, the photograph is standing at the

·3· ·highway edge, and the sign and those holding it are

·4· ·between the two structures in the center of the

·5· ·picture.

·6· · · · Q.· And you would agree it's difficult to see.

·7· · · · A.· It is very difficult to see.

·8· · · · · · · · (Share Screen.)

·9· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Next, I'm showing you a

10· ·photograph.

11· · · · · · Does this photograph depict the sign that's

12· ·being requested by the Applicants; in other words,

13· ·the roughly 48 squire foot sign?

14· · · · A.· It is.

15· · · · Q.· Are you, again, in this picture one of the

16· ·people holding the sign?

17· · · · A.· I am.

18· · · · Q.· Where was this photograph taken from?

19· · · · A.· This photograph was, again, taken near one

20· ·of the existing entrances, roughly halfway between

21· ·the highway and the parking lot.
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·1· · · · · · · · (Share Screen.)

·2· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Finally, the fourth

·3· ·photograph.

·4· · · · · · Again, does this photograph depict the sign

·5· ·as is being requested by the Applicants; the roughly

·6· ·48 square foot sign?

·7· · · · A.· It does.

·8· · · · Q.· And where is this photograph taken from?

·9· · · · A.· This photograph is taken closer to the

10· ·highway.

11· · · · Q.· Would you agree that the sign as being

12· ·proposed by the Applicants, for which they seek a

13· ·variance, is more readily visible than the sign that

14· ·is permitted by code?

15· · · · A.· Absolutely.

16· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, I would offer

17· ·those four photographs.· Again, they were provided

18· ·to Ms. Smith, as the Applicants' Exhibit Nos. 9

19· ·through 12.

20· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· They will be

21· ·accepted.
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·1· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, would adhering

·2· ·to the 10 square foot requirement, as evidenced by

·3· ·these pictures, make a sign on the proposed Dollar

·4· ·General building difficult to see from Maryland

·5· ·Route 152?

·6· · · · A.· Yes.· In fact, that was why we went out

·7· ·there and took these pictures, just to see exactly

·8· ·what it would look like.· It is very difficult to

·9· ·see.

10· · · · Q.· And I should have asked you this question.

11· · · · · · Did you run measurements, when you were on

12· ·site, to ensure that where you were standing with

13· ·the sign is in the approximate location where the

14· ·building would be located?

15· · · · A.· Yes.· We took a tape measure, and we

16· ·measured.· And the sign that you're seeing is in

17· ·exactly the location of the front of the building.

18· · · · Q.· Is the difficulty due, in your opinion, to

19· ·the extent of the right-of-way along Maryland Route

20· ·152?

21· · · · A.· Absolutely.· It's just about 110 feet of
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·1· ·setback from the highway to the parking lot, and

·2· ·there's an additional 80 feet or so to the front of

·3· ·the building.· So the building sets back 190 feet

·4· ·from the highway.

·5· · · · Q.· So really it's a combination of the

·6· ·right-of-way and the adaptive reuse of the parking

·7· ·lot, is that right?

·8· · · · A.· That's correct.

·9· · · · Q.· And in your opinion, Mr. Taylor, could

10· ·being required to have a 10 square foot sign on the

11· ·front of the building give any safety or traffic

12· ·concerns, in your view?

13· · · · A.· I think it would.· It would make it very

14· ·difficult to see by a traveler.· And, basically, you

15· ·would have to strain yourself to see the sign and

16· ·what it says.

17· · · · Q.· Would requiring the Applicant to adhere to

18· ·the 10 square foot sign requirement propose a

19· ·practical hardship?

20· · · · A.· I believe so.

21· · · · Q.· And, again, is this due to the size of the

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880

ZONING CASE NO. 5939 ZONING HEARING
February 24, 2021

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880
YVer1f



Page 33
·1· ·right-of-way along Route 152 as well as the existing

·2· ·parking lot, pushing the building back off of the

·3· ·road?

·4· · · · A.· Yes.

·5· · · · Q.· I believe you already testified to this.

·6· · · · · · But did the right-of-way exist prior to the

·7· ·time the Applicants bought the property?

·8· · · · A.· Yes, it did.

·9· · · · Q.· And in your opinion, Mr. Taylor, does the

10· ·fact that this right-of-way exists along the front

11· ·of the property combined with the fact that a

12· ·parking lot exists on there that will be reused make

13· ·this property unique?

14· · · · A.· I believe it's very unique, and you can

15· ·compare it with the properties on the other side of

16· ·the highway, which are right up against the highway.

17· ·You can easily see their signage.· But this signage

18· ·would be quite a bit farther than those signs.

19· · · · Q.· So focusing strictly on the sign, which is

20· ·the subject at tonight's hearing and not the use, in

21· ·your opinion, will the granting of the variance for
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·1· ·the sign have an adverse impact on the number of

·2· ·persons living or working in the immediate area?

·3· · · · A.· In my opinion, no.

·4· · · · Q.· And in your opinion, will the granting of

·5· ·the variance adversely affect the orderly growth of

·6· ·the neighborhood and community?

·7· · · · A.· No.

·8· · · · Q.· In your opinion, will the granting of the

·9· ·variance for the sign generate any noise, odors,

10· ·dust, gas, smoke, fumes, or glare that would

11· ·adversely impact any adjacent properties?

12· · · · A.· No.

13· · · · Q.· In fact, allowing the sign to be expanded

14· ·from 10 to approximately 48 square feet will have

15· ·the benefit of making the sign more visible.

16· · · · A.· Yes, it would.· And I think that's a safer

17· ·condition.

18· · · · Q.· Is the requested variance consistent with

19· ·generally accepted engineering and planning

20· ·principles and practices?

21· · · · A.· Yes.
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·1· · · · Q.· Are there any nearby schools, library, or

·2· ·churches that would be adversely impacted by the

·3· ·granting of this variance?

·4· · · · A.· No.

·5· · · · Q.· Do you believe this variance is consistent

·6· ·with the purposes of the Code and the Master Plan?

·7· · · · A.· Yes.

·8· · · · Q.· Are there any environmentally sensitive

·9· ·features on-site that will be adversely impacted by

10· ·the granting of the sign variance?

11· · · · A.· No.

12· · · · Q.· To your knowledge, are there any cultural

13· ·or historical landmarks on the property that will be

14· ·impacted by the sign variance?

15· · · · A.· No.

16· · · · Q.· In your opinion, Mr. Taylor, would strict

17· ·adherence of the sign Code provisions cause a

18· ·hardship on the Applicants?

19· · · · A.· No, it would not.

20· · · · Q.· And due to the existing parking lot and

21· ·extensive right-of-way being existing before the
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·1· ·Applicants took title, did the Applicants not create

·2· ·this hardship?

·3· · · · A.· They did not create this hardship.

·4· · · · Q.· In your opinion, is the property unique in

·5· ·so far as the Applicants will be reusing the parking

·6· ·lot and the large right-of-way that exists?

·7· · · · A.· Yes.

·8· · · · Q.· In your opinion, are the Applicants seeking

·9· ·the minimum relief needed?

10· · · · A.· Yes.

11· · · · Q.· And, in fact, that was part of the purpose

12· ·of the exercise of going out to the property to take

13· ·the photographs?

14· · · · A.· It was.· Yes.

15· · · · Q.· To your knowledge, are the Applicants

16· ·seeking any other special exception or variance

17· ·relief as to this development?

18· · · · A.· They are not.

19· · · · Q.· And the use itself will continue to be

20· ·subject to the provisions of the Code.

21· · · · A.· Yes.
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·1· · · · Q.· And the Applicants will be required to go

·2· ·to complete the DAC process in order to construct

·3· ·the Dollar General building.

·4· · · · A.· Correct.

·5· · · · Q.· And the Applicants will, other than the

·6· ·relief being requested tonight, be required to

·7· ·adhere to provisions 267-58 of the Code --

·8· · · · A.· Yes.

·9· · · · Q.· -- as set forth in the VB requirements.

10· · · · A.· Yes.

11· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· I don't have any further

12· ·questions for Mr. Taylor, Mr. Kahoe.

13· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Young.

14· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

15· · · · Q.· Mr. Taylor, do you believe that a shopping

16· ·center could be developed on this property?

17· · · · A.· It's a limited -- the property is limited

18· ·in size.· Some sort of shopping center, perhaps,

19· ·could be constructed.

20· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· No, we don't

21· ·want that.· I'm serious.· We don't want that.

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880

ZONING CASE NO. 5939 ZONING HEARING
February 24, 2021

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880
YVer1f



Page 38
·1· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Goff, please mute your

·2· ·feed and stop the visual reactions.

·3· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) I'm sorry, Mr. Taylor.

·4· ·Could you repeat what you had said at the end of

·5· ·your statement?

·6· · · · A.· I said it is -- I think it would be

·7· ·possible.· It's dependent on the proposed uses.· But

·8· ·a small shopping center, strip center could be

·9· ·developed on this property.

10· · · · Q.· Would that be a principally permitted use?

11· · · · A.· It would have to be a principally permitted

12· ·use, yes.

13· · · · Q.· The signs that you were holding up in

14· ·pictures 7 through 10, were those signs LED

15· ·illuminated?

16· · · · A.· No.· What we did was to take a banner-sized

17· ·white banner out there and stretch it for the

18· ·distance.· Basically, we sided -- we cut out a sized

19· ·banner and then photo shopped in the sign for Dollar

20· ·General.· The banner gave us the dimensions of the

21· ·actual sign.
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·1· · · · Q.· And was that a three-dimensional rendering

·2· ·of the sign?

·3· · · · A.· No.· It's two dimensional.

·4· · · · Q.· Okay.· And the sign that's proposed, would

·5· ·that be a three-dimensional sign?

·6· · · · · · And I call your attention to your exhibit

·7· ·labeled "Wall-Mounted Sign Rendering," which I

·8· ·believe is Exhibit 11.

·9· · · · A.· Well, it does project from the face of the

10· ·building somewhat.· It is an LED sign with depth.

11· · · · Q.· And would the depth and illumination of

12· ·that sign enhance the ability to see a sign

13· ·regardless of the size?

14· · · · A.· Well, lighting would always enhance the

15· ·visibility of a sign.

16· · · · Q.· Thank you.

17· · · · · · Could you please refer to your Exhibit 2;

18· ·the site plan?

19· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Stover, is it possible

20· ·for you to bring that back up on the screen?

21· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Sure.· Is that good?
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·1· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Yes.· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · · (Share Screen.)

·3· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Mr. Taylor, as best you can

·4· ·in this forum, can you identify where the

·5· ·free-standing sign that's proposed would be located?

·6· · · · A.· Is there a pointer?

·7· · · · · · Yes, that's the location of the proposed

·8· ·free-standing sign.

·9· · · · Q.· And does that location propose taking into

10· ·account that there is intended to be a wall-mounted

11· ·side on the front of the property?

12· · · · A.· The two signs are somewhat independent of

13· ·one another, I believe.· They serve different

14· ·purposes.

15· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Taylor, describe

16· ·where the free-standing sign is to be located,

17· ·because we're making a record here.· Describe what

18· ·it's going to be.

19· · · · · · · · WITNESS TAYLOR:· I'm sorry.· I couldn't

20· ·understand that.

21· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Go ahead, Mr.
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·1· ·Young.

·2· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Can you, please, describe

·3· ·what you're pointing to with your cursor?

·4· · · · A.· Yeah, we're pointing to the location of the

·5· ·proposed free-standing sign, which is a separate

·6· ·sign from the building-mounted sign.

·7· · · · Q.· And that's close to 165 at the southeast

·8· ·corner of this property, is that correct?

·9· · · · A.· That's correct.· It would have to be

10· ·located 20 feet beyond the right-of-way -- the

11· ·proposed right-of-way.

12· · · · Q.· Could the free-standing sign be located 20

13· ·feet from the right-of-way of 165 and at the corner

14· ·of the right-of-way with 152, on the northeast

15· ·corner of the property?

16· · · · A.· Is there any way that you identify that a

17· ·little better?

18· · · · Q.· You're at the southeast corner of the

19· ·property as the location for the free-standing sign.

20· · · · · · Is there any reason why the free-standing

21· ·sign couldn't, instead, be located at the northeast
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·1· ·corner of the property?

·2· · · · A.· Well, it could not be located in the State

·3· ·Highway right-of-way.

·4· · · · Q.· Okay.· So where --

·5· · · · A.· It would have to be on the property.· And

·6· ·due to the parking lot being within 10 or 15 feet of

·7· ·the property line, locating a sign 20 feet off the

·8· ·property line would put it in the parking lot.

·9· · · · Q.· So it's your testimony that there's no

10· ·location in the northeast corner of the property

11· ·where a free-standing sign could be erected without

12· ·going on top of existing infrastructure.

13· · · · A.· That's correct, on the property.· It cannot

14· ·be located in the State Highway right-of-way.· It

15· ·would have to be located on the property.

16· · · · · · So we've looked at other locations.· And

17· ·they just don't work without requesting additional

18· ·variances.

19· · · · Q.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Taylor, is the

21· ·location of the proposed free-standing sign noted on
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·1· ·your site plan?

·2· · · · · · · · WITNESS TAYLOR:· It is.

·3· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Try to help me find

·4· ·it, because I can't find it.

·5· · · · · · · · WITNESS TAYLOR:· It's -- let me just

·6· ·make sure it's the one on the screen.· Yes, it's got

·7· ·call out.

·8· · · · · · · · (Scrolling cursor.)

·9· · · · · · The arrow is pointing to the call out and

10· ·the sign.· It says, Proposed 6-foot high

11· ·double-sided monument sign with 18 square foot sign

12· ·face.

13· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Does that have number 582 in

14· ·darker ink closer to it?

15· · · · A.· Yeah.· The call out is the darker ink on

16· ·the plan.· The sign itself is difficult to see.· But

17· ·the call out does point to the sign.· The sign is

18· ·located 20 feet off the proposed right-of-way and 10

19· ·feet off of the existing entrance.

20· · · · Q.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Stover, are you able to
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·1· ·zoom in on the northeast corner of the property,

·2· ·please?

·3· · · · · · · · (Complies.)

·4· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Thank you.

·5· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Mr. Taylor, can you

·6· ·demonstrate where the State right-of-way ends along

·7· ·152?

·8· · · · A.· This is the property line.· This is the

·9· ·State -- also the State right-of-way.· (Indicating.)

10· · · · Q.· Okay.

11· · · · A.· Like so.· It continues.· (Indicating.)

12· · · · Q.· And is there any space available between

13· ·that line and the parking lot?

14· · · · A.· No.· We looked at an area here.· But to

15· ·conform to the Code, you need 20 feet.· And the sign

16· ·would project out into the drive aisle.· Same

17· ·situation here.· (Indicating.)

18· · · · · · And once you get over here, you're going

19· ·down the hill.· This is all wooded and not visible

20· ·from the highway.· (Indicating.)

21· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Do you have any rendering to
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·1· ·demonstrate whether the free-standing sign at the

·2· ·proposed location would be visible from 152?

·3· · · · A.· We haven't taken any photos of the

·4· ·free-standing sign, since it was not part of this

·5· ·question.· We are showing it on the plan.

·6· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No further questions.

·7· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Let me ask, at this

·8· ·point, does any participant have a question of Mr.

·9· ·Taylor that has not already been asked and answered?

10· · · · · · Anybody?

11· · · · · · Okay, Mr. Stover, do you have any

12· ·follow-up?

13· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Just a couple.

14· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. STOVER:

15· · · · Q.· Mr. Taylor, to be clear for the record, the

16· ·DAC plan that has been submitted is not for a

17· ·shopping center, is that correct?

18· · · · A.· Correct.

19· · · · Q.· And as part of the DAC approval process,

20· ·also part of the Code, the Applicant will be

21· ·required to meet any and all requirements with
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·1· ·respect to lighting?

·2· · · · A.· Yes.

·3· · · · Q.· That would include shielding and not

·4· ·adversely affecting the operation of any vehicles or

·5· ·adjacent residential lots or buildings?

·6· · · · A.· That's correct.

·7· · · · Q.· And Mr. Young asked you a question about

·8· ·whether or not the sign was 3-D.

·9· · · · · · Would you agree it to be that the

10· ·projection of the sign of, I think you testified, 5

11· ·inches is relatively insignificant?

12· · · · A.· It is insignificant.· So, obviously, a sign

13· ·has three dimensional qualities, but it's not, per

14· ·se, what I would call a 3-D sign.

15· · · · Q.· In other words, the fact that this sign is

16· ·going to project a little less than half a foot off

17· ·the building is not going to make it any more or

18· ·less visible.

19· · · · A.· Correct.

20· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Nothing further, Mr.

21· ·Kahoe.
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·1· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· I have a

·2· ·question.

·3· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Who said something?

·4· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· Sorry about

·5· ·that.· This is Cyrus Etemad-Moghadam.· I have a

·6· ·question on the signs.

·7· · · · · · All the pictures that you had had the sign

·8· ·quite low.

·9· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Hold on second.

10· ·Please identify yourself again, and what is your

11· ·address, sir?

12· · · · · · · · MR. ETEMAD-MOGHADAM:· 3004 Franklin's

13· ·Chance Drive, Fallston, Maryland 21047.

14· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · · MR. ETEMAD-MOGHADAM:· So the question I

16· ·had was on all of the images, the sign was quite

17· ·low.· I'm assuming that the sign will be quite a bit

18· ·higher, given the height of the building, is that

19· ·correct?

20· · · · · · · · WITNESS TAYLOR:· It will be located as

21· ·that exhibit depicts it, which would be above the
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·1· ·front entrance.

·2· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Taylor, just

·3· ·tell us how far above the front entrance.· I'm not

·4· ·sure everybody is familiar with the rendering.

·5· · · · · · Tell us how high above the ground level and

·6· ·how high above the doorway.

·7· · · · · · · · WITNESS TAYLOR:· This would be an

·8· ·estimate, because, actually, the exhibit doesn't

·9· ·have actual dimensions for height.· But it's over

10· ·the doorway.· It's probably 6 feet high.· Plus you

11· ·have another 6 feet.· So I would say probably 12

12· ·feet above ground level.

13· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Sir, next question.

14· · · · · · · · MR. ETEMAD-MOGHADAM:· No.

15· · · · · · · · MS. SCHEIR:· Beth Scheir.

16· · · · · · My first question for Mr. Taylor is that he

17· ·used language relative to the other side of the

18· ·highway, when describing the adjacent properties.

19· · · · · · Mr. Taylor, for the record, would you

20· ·please state the zoning designation on "the other

21· ·side of the highway" and make sure you are clear as
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·1· ·to whether it is the same or different zoning

·2· ·designation?

·3· · · · · · · · WITNESS TAYLOR:· Okay.· The plan that I

·4· ·have doesn't show the other side of the property.

·5· ·So you caught me for a moment here.

·6· · · · · · But I believe the subject property is VB.

·7· ·And I believe the BB&T bank, which is on the east

·8· ·side of Baldwin Mill Road, is VB.· And I believe the

·9· ·opposite -- the properties on the opposite side of

10· ·152 are business zoned on either side of 165.

11· · · · · · · · MS. SCHEIR:· My understanding per your

12· ·comment was the other side of the highway, was

13· ·across 152.

14· · · · · · I want to make it clear that those

15· ·properties are developed the way they are because

16· ·they are in fact B1 zoned, not Village Business

17· ·zoning.

18· · · · · · My other point of note for Mr. Taylor would

19· ·be, I would like to see the photograph, the picture

20· ·you took of the property behind the proposed Dollar

21· ·General site.
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·1· · · · · · You provided photographs of the commercial

·2· ·property surrounding, but you failed to provide a

·3· ·photograph of the property to the rear.

·4· · · · · · May we see that, please.

·5· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, I will object.

·6· ·I'm not sure I understand the question, number one.

·7· ·Number two, the Applicants' exhibits that are in

·8· ·evidence are what we provided as part of our case.

·9· · · · · · · · MS. SCHEIR:· Okay.· Then I would like

10· ·to make it available, for the record, that the

11· ·property behind, directly behind where the proposed

12· ·Dollar General will be is in fact a residence.

13· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you.· You will

14· ·have an opportunity to testify later in the hearing.

15· · · · · · Do you have any other questions for Mr.

16· ·Taylor?

17· · · · · · · · MS. SCHEIR:· No.· Those were my two

18· ·questions for Mr. Taylor.

19· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · Anybody else?

21· · · · · · Okay, Mr. Taylor.· I think we're done with
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·1· ·you.

·2· · · · · · Mr. Stover?

·3· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· That's the Applicants'

·4· ·case, Mr. Kahoe.

·5· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, Mr.

·6· ·Stover.

·7· · · · · · At this point in the hearing, a

·8· ·representative of the Department of Planning and

·9· ·Zoning, David Culver, will give us the Department's

10· ·recommendation, which we're all interested in,

11· ·because there was a late modification of the

12· ·application, and I'm not sure -- I have not seen the

13· ·Department's position on the modified application.

14· · · · · · Mr. Culver?

15· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· Thank you, Mr. Kahoe.

16· · · · · · We did not get official notification of the

17· ·modification.· So I will read the summary and

18· ·recommendation based off of what was submitted to

19· ·the Department.

20· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Culver, you can.

21· ·I have it.· It's not going to really be helpful to
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·1· ·me to read that.· It's based on three other

·2· ·variances, which are not before me.· It's based on a

·3· ·wall sign, which is three times the size of the one

·4· ·that's been requested.

·5· · · · · · I understand you didn't have time to do a

·6· ·new Staff Report.· But what's in the file does not

·7· ·help me.· It does not help me.· It's not going to

·8· ·help me.

·9· · · · · · If you need additional time to give us your

10· ·amended Staff Report, we're going to have to adjourn

11· ·to give you time to submit the report, so we all can

12· ·understand what the Department, which is the

13· ·objective observer here -- at least one of the

14· ·objective observers of what their intent is.

15· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· Mr. Kahoe, if I may, I

16· ·don't think --

17· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Who is this?

18· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· David Culver with Harford

19· ·County Planning and Zoning.

20· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· I'm sorry, Mr.

21· ·Culver.· Go ahead.
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·1· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· I'm sorry, Mr. Kahoe.  I

·2· ·was just going to say that the Department concluded

·3· ·in our Staff Report that we do not find the lot to

·4· ·be unique in shape or topography and that we do not

·5· ·find the request to be in character with the Village

·6· ·Business and Rural Village study without

·7· ·architectural renderings or other information.

·8· · · · · · I don't think we would change our

·9· ·recommendation on finding it to be unique in shape

10· ·or topography based off the wall sign being reduced

11· ·in size.

12· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Culver, I'm

13· ·perfectly willing to accept your opinion, if that is

14· ·your opinion.· I don't want you to speculate as to

15· ·what the Department is going to do.

16· · · · · · If you want to tell me what the

17· ·Department's opinion is based on the application as

18· ·you've already heard it, I think we all would like

19· ·to hear it.

20· · · · · · But if you are unclear, uncertain what

21· ·Staff would say -- you are Staff, but I assume you
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·1· ·actually staff up some of these opinions, before you

·2· ·give them to me.

·3· · · · · · Now, if you're uncertain, we're going to

·4· ·have to adjourn.· I have read your decision -- I

·5· ·mean your recommended decision.· I've read it.  I

·6· ·know what it is.· But it's based on a different

·7· ·presentation.

·8· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· Again, I would be more

·9· ·than happy to redo the Staff Report based off the

10· ·revised signage request.

11· · · · · · However, our recommendation was based off

12· ·whether or not this was unique in size or shape or

13· ·anything else.

14· · · · · · As far as the property is concerned for the

15· ·sign variance, I don't believe we will conclude

16· ·anything different than that.

17· · · · · · Again, I will be more than happy to redo a

18· ·Staff Report at your direction based off just the

19· ·request for a wall sign to be 50 foot instead of the

20· ·150 requested.

21· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· No.· I'm not going
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·1· ·to waste time.· If that's the opinion -- and I don't

·2· ·want to split hairs.· If that's the opinions of --

·3· · · · · · If you're confident that that would be the

·4· ·opinion of the Staff and that is, in fact, your

·5· ·opinion, then I will accept that, accept your

·6· ·findings or your position that there is nothing

·7· ·unique about the property but about the request for

·8· ·the variance.

·9· · · · · · Is that a fair statement, Mr. Culver?

10· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· That is fair, Mr. Kahoe.

11· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Stover, any

12· ·questions of Mr. Culver.

13· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Just a couple.

14· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. STOVER:

15· · · · Q.· Good evening, Mr. Culver.

16· · · · · · So the use itself of the Dollar General

17· ·building, that, of course, is subject to 267-58 of

18· ·the Code.

19· · · · · · And is it accurate that in conjunction with

20· ·the development process that the Applicant will be

21· ·required to submit architectural renderings that are
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·1· ·then reviewed by the Director of Planning for

·2· ·conformance with the, I believe, Upper Crossroads

·3· ·Rural Village study?

·4· · · · · · Is that right?

·5· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· That's correct.· The

·6· ·Director of the Department of Planning and Zoning

·7· ·would make the final determination of whether or not

·8· ·it is architecturally compatible in accordance with

·9· ·the Zoning Code and the Rural Village study.

10· · · · Q.· I have the Code in front of me, Mr. Culver.

11· · · · · · But that's set forth in 267-58(E)(7).  I

12· ·don't know if you know it off the top of your head.

13· ·But I will purport to you that --

14· · · · A.· I do not.· But I could pull up the Code, if

15· ·you want me to confirm that.

16· · · · Q.· I think my question there is, is that

17· ·particular provision applies to the development of

18· ·new buildings in the VB?

19· · · · · · Is that right?· Is that your understanding?

20· · · · A.· The VB standard would apply to new

21· ·buildings or anybody who's making an application for
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·1· ·anything under that zoning classification.

·2· · · · Q.· Do you know if that provision of the Code

·3· ·also requires a review of signage for conformance of

·4· ·the Upper Crossroads Rural Village study?

·5· · · · A.· The signage section specifically spells out

·6· ·what is required in the VB District; the one

·7· ·free-standing sign per parcel, the wall sign and so

·8· ·forth.

·9· · · · Q.· So when the Department reviews a sign in

10· ·the VB District -- just the sign, not the use --

11· ·they would be guided by section 267-33 with respect

12· ·to the requirements for signage in the VB.

13· · · · · · Is that accurate?

14· · · · A.· That would be accurate, yes.

15· · · · Q.· And Mr. Young asked a question of Mr.

16· ·Taylor that was sort of along these lines.

17· · · · · · But if this property were to be developed

18· ·as a shopping center -- and we know it's not -- but,

19· ·hypothetically, the Applicant would be allowed to

20· ·have 10-foot signs for each user up to six uses, is

21· ·that correct?
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·1· · · · A.· I believe that is correct.

·2· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· I don't have any further

·3· ·questions for Mr. Culver, Mr. Kahoe.

·4· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Goff, I don't

·5· ·know if you're recording orally or recording audio.

·6· ·But anybody can pull up this hearing afterwards.

·7· ·This is all being recorded.

·8· · · · · · · · MR. GOFF:· I just want to have a voice

·9· ·in this matter, Mr. Kahoe.· It seems to me like

10· ·everybody else is speaking but the residents in the

11· ·area.

12· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Look.· Look.· You're

13· ·holding your phone up.· I just want to --

14· · · · · · · · MR. GOFF:· I'm just showing you

15· ·pictures of the other Dollar General store.

16· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· I just wanted you to

17· ·know this is all being recorded.· Anybody can pull

18· ·it up at any time after tonight and see what's been

19· ·said.

20· · · · · · You will have a chance to testify.· I think

21· ·I have made that point a couple times.
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·1· · · · · · Mr. Young, do you have any questions of Mr.

·2· ·Culver?

·3· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· I do not.

·4· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Culver, thanks

·5· ·very much.

·6· · · · · · · · MR. CULVER:· Thank you, Mr. Kahoe.

·7· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· We'll go to the

·8· ·Protestants' case.

·9· · · · · · Mr. Young?

10· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· We would call Ms. Beth

11· ·Poggioli.

12· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Your address, ma'am.

13· · · · · · · · WITNESS POGGIOLI:· 2740 Greene Road,

14· ·Baldwin, Maryland 21013.

15· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

16· · · · Q.· Ms. Poggioli, are you familiar with this

17· ·location?

18· · · · A.· Yes.

19· · · · Q.· How often have you been by there?

20· · · · A.· Several times a day.

21· · · · Q.· Okay.· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · And are you familiar with the other

·2· ·businesses in the area?

·3· · · · A.· Yes.

·4· · · · Q.· And are you familiar with the signs that

·5· ·are at those other businesses?

·6· · · · A.· Yes.

·7· · · · Q.· Are there any signs at the intersection of

·8· ·152 and 165 that you find difficult to see?

·9· · · · A.· No, not at all.

10· · · · Q.· Are there any businesses there that you

11· ·have difficulty identifying based on the size of

12· ·their signs?

13· · · · A.· No, not at all.

14· · · · Q.· How many businesses are there in that area

15· ·of Fallston?· If you know.

16· · · · A.· Quantity-wise?· I can't say off the top of

17· ·my head.· But they mainly reside at the corners of

18· ·152 and 165.· That's the location of the businesses.

19· · · · Q.· Do you know how far it is from that

20· ·intersection to another business, headed south on

21· ·152?
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·1· · · · A.· It's -- headed south, there are residences

·2· ·that were turned into commercial, so they are old

·3· ·houses that are now commercial use; a sub shop and

·4· ·an antique store, which are about a few hundred feet

·5· ·away, which would be not too far -- near the

·6· ·intersection of Scarff Road and 165, heading south.

·7· · · · Q.· So is that headed down 165 or 152 that you

·8· ·were just discussing?

·9· · · · A.· 165 is the residential uses that were

10· ·converted to commercial.

11· · · · Q.· And those buildings are still residential

12· ·in appearance, is that correct?

13· · · · A.· Yes.· Yes.

14· · · · Q.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · And are you familiar with how far it is

16· ·from this location along 152, headed west?

17· · · · A.· Headed west on 152 there is not much but

18· ·vegetation and the volunteer fire department annex.

19· · · · Q.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Ms. Smith, are you able to

21· ·pull up the exhibit that was emailed to you
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·1· ·previously this week?

·2· · · · · · · · MRS. SMITH:· No, I cannot.· You mean

·3· ·pull it up from Dropbox?

·4· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Are you able to put things

·5· ·on display, like Mr. Stover just did previously this

·6· ·evening?

·7· · · · · · · · MRS. SMITH:· No, I am not.

·8· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Ms. Poggioli, did you

·9· ·prepare an analysis of the distance from this

10· ·intersection to other businesses in the area?

11· · · · A.· Yes.· Using Google Maps, I measured how far

12· ·in each direction.· There's not any competing

13· ·businesses, necessarily, in each direction.

14· · · · · · We could review that or --

15· · · · Q.· Yes.· If you could look at what you

16· ·prepared headed west on 152.

17· · · · · · Do you have that document in front of you?

18· · · · A.· Yes.· I can't share a screen, can I?

19· · · · Q.· No.· We do have that uploaded to the file.

20· ·And I believe Mr. Stover has a copy of it.· It was

21· ·emailed to him as well.· We can review that
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·1· ·subsequently.

·2· · · · · · But if you could just describe the distance

·3· ·of what you were measuring to.

·4· · · · A.· Do you want me to hold it up?

·5· · · · Q.· That's fine.

·6· · · · A.· My printer wasn't very good.

·7· · · · · · But, basically, using Google Maps, it's

·8· ·measuring the distance from the intersection to the

·9· ·volunteer fire department, and it's exactly --

10· · · · · · Oh, it's actually just about -- almost a

11· ·mile.· And then, after that, there's really nothing

12· ·but residential and just vegetation along the road.

13· ·That's headed west -- east.· I'm sorry.

14· · · · Q.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · And you also had a document headed to on

16· ·Hemphill's, east on Route 152, is that correct?

17· · · · A.· Yes.· I'm sorry.· That's east, yes.

18· · · · · · Headed towards Hemphill's would be east on

19· ·152, and that's about 1.4 miles.· That's the first

20· ·commercial use that's not in that intersection.

21· · · · · · So there's really just large houses and
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·1· ·farms and then Hemphill's, which is 1.4 miles.

·2· · · · Q.· Did you also prepare another exhibit headed

·3· ·north on 165?

·4· · · · A.· Yes.· North on 165, there is all

·5· ·residential use, until you get to about Route 23,

·6· ·which is 3.23.· And, then after, it's also

·7· ·residential.· So that's 3.23 miles.

·8· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Kahoe, those are the

·9· ·Protestants' Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4.

10· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, I think the

11· ·documents are what they are.· I'm not sure they're

12· ·relevant to the narrow scope.· But I think they are

13· ·what they are.· So I would object on relevance.

14· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Google Maps may show

15· ·me something I haven't seen before, so I will accept

16· ·Protestants' Exhibits 1 through 4.

17· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Ms. Poggioli, based on the

18· ·absence of other businesses in the vicinity, do you

19· ·believe that it's possible anyone would not notice

20· ·that the Dollar General had been constructed at this

21· ·location?
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·1· · · · A.· It would be impossible not to notice it.

·2· · · · Q.· Do you believe that the size of the sign

·3· ·would make a difference on anyone being able to

·4· ·identify this location?

·5· · · · A.· No.

·6· · · · Q.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · Have you reviewed the --

·8· · · · · · You listened to Mr. Stover's presentation

·9· ·through Mr. Taylor this evening, is that correct?

10· · · · A.· Yes.

11· · · · Q.· Do you have any other comments in regard to

12· ·what you heard or what you observed in regard to the

13· ·application submitted?

14· · · · A.· I don't believe that there's any undue

15· ·hardship for having a larger sign.· I don't feel

16· ·that anybody would be able to not locate the Dollar

17· ·General with signage and the size of the building.

18· · · · Q.· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· I have no further

20· ·questions.

21· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Stover?
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·1· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Two quick questions of Ms.

·2· ·Poggioli.

·3· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. STOVER:

·4· · · · Q.· First, you don't happen to know the

·5· ·measurements of the signs at the intersection of 152

·6· ·and 165, do you?

·7· · · · A.· The Village Business-zoned signs or the B1?

·8· · · · Q.· Any of them.

·9· · · · A.· Any of them?

10· · · · · · No, I do not.

11· · · · Q.· Okay.

12· · · · A.· I do know that they are small.· And the B1

13· ·catty-corner, the shopping center, does not have

14· ·any.· They are all on the shopping center.

15· · · · Q.· Would you agree that the exhibits that the

16· ·Applicant entered tonight showing the sign, as it

17· ·was proposed, were difficult to see?

18· · · · A.· I don't believe that they were accurate.

19· ·It was inaccurate.

20· · · · · · Having two people stand with a banner in

21· ·the middle of a parking lot is different than having
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·1· ·a large building with a sign on it.

·2· · · · Q.· That didn't really answer my question.

·3· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· I will withdraw it.  I

·4· ·have no further questions, Mr. Kahoe.

·5· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, ma'am.

·6· · · · · · Is that all of this witness?

·7· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· I would call Mr. Lee

·8· ·Harris, if he is still available.· Mr. Harris, could

·9· ·you please unmute your phone?

10· · · · · · Mr. Harris is on the telephone.· Actually,

11· ·it looks like he may be -- I can't tell if he's on a

12· ·phone or computer.

13· · · · · · Mr. Lee, can you hear us?

14· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· Lee is a female,

15· ·and it's my next-door neighbor, actually.

16· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· I apologize, Ms. Lee.

17· · · · · · All right.· We'll come back in a moment.

18· ·Hopefully, we can figure out the microphone issue.

19· · · · · · Is Ms. Lynn Faulkner available?

20· · · · · · · · MS. FAULKNER:· Yes, I am.· I am here.

21· ·I've just turned my camera on, also.
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·1· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

·2· · · · Q.· Can you state your full name, please?

·3· · · · A.· Yes.· It's Lynn Faulkner.· I reside at 2126

·4· ·Fallston Road.

·5· · · · · · As Beth Poggioli just mentioned, towards

·6· ·Pleasantville --

·7· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Hold on a second.

·8· · · · A.· I live two miles.

·9· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Hold on.· Have you

10· ·been sworn in?

11· · · · · · If there is anybody else who has not

12· ·previously been and who may testify, raise your

13· ·right hand.

14· · · · · · · · (Witness Sworn.)

15· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Young) Say your address again,

16· ·please.

17· · · · A.· 2126 Fallston Road, heading south on 152 on

18· ·Fallston Road, approximately two miles from the

19· ·proposed property.

20· · · · Q.· And are you familiar with that

21· ·intersection?
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·1· · · · A.· Yes, very much so.· I am fifth generation,

·2· ·resided here on this property from ancestors.  I

·3· ·prepared a little document here, actually.

·4· · · · · · I've lived here; as I said, fifth

·5· ·generation.· The property used to be a small dairy

·6· ·farm.· My great grandparents used a horse and cart

·7· ·and took milk to the Ma and Pa Railroad station for

·8· ·transport.· We also had a horse.· I have vivid,

·9· ·wonderful memories or riding a horse across the

10· ·farms, across Scarff Farm, Amoss Farm, Hess Farm, to

11· ·165, to the village business of the Wright's store,

12· ·where we would pick up penny candy and ride back on

13· ·the horse.· So, yeah, I've seen a lot of changes up

14· ·here.· I'm very familiar with the property.

15· · · · Q.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · And did you hear the Applicants' case

17· ·tonight regarding the proposed sign?

18· · · · A.· Yes.· And I would like to oppose it.

19· · · · · · Because of the expected light pollution

20· ·with subsequent human health sequelae and hazards

21· ·and bird and insect deaths that will ensue because
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·1· ·of this exploitation have to be of the utmost

·2· ·concern to the development of this rural area.

·3· · · · · · The rural view shed for which the current

·4· ·residents pay dearly and property taxes to maintain

·5· ·the beauty of this pleasant valley is really in

·6· ·jeopardy.

·7· · · · · · Allowing this Dollar General big-box store

·8· ·in this zone, regardless of the signage size, this

·9· ·building and sign will have deleterious effects on

10· ·the Village of Upper Crossroads and Lancaster

11· ·Corners, where I'm from, the next little village.

12· · · · Q.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · And to make sure we're clear, are you

14· ·saying that the light of a 50-square-foot sign would

15· ·be more adverse to you than the light coming from

16· ·the 10-foot sign that's permitted?

17· · · · A.· Definitely.· It would be a disadvantage to

18· ·anyone that resides in this community.

19· · · · Q.· Thank you.· Nothing further, Ms. Faulkner.

20· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· No questions.

21· · · · · · Next witness.
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·1· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Ms. Harris, are you

·2· ·available now?

·3· · · · · · · · MS. HARRIS:· I believe so.

·4· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Thank you.

·5· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

·6· · · · Q.· Can you state your name and address for the

·7· ·record, please?

·8· · · · A.· Lee Harris, 2905 Fallston Road, which is

·9· ·just west of the location we're talking about.

10· · · · Q.· Ms Harris, were you sworn in previously?

11· · · · A.· Yes, I was.

12· · · · Q.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · And did you hear Mr. Stover's and Mr.

14· ·Taylor's case and presentation tonight?

15· · · · A.· Yes, I have.

16· · · · Q.· And what is your opinion of the request to

17· ·have a 50-square-foot sign as opposed to a

18· ·10-square-foot sign as permitted?

19· · · · A.· I see no reason for it at all because a

20· ·sign that is illuminated is much more visible than

21· ·one that's just printed, for one thing.
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·1· · · · · · And the bright -- this sign that the Dollar

·2· ·General uses is a bright yellow.· And when that's

·3· ·illuminated, it is very offensive.· And I would not

·4· ·like to see that happen to our rural area.

·5· · · · Q.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · Do you have anything else you want to say

·7· ·in regard to the application?

·8· · · · A.· Well, I've lived there for a long time,

·9· ·too, when the bank was built.· And I know that they

10· ·had special requirements there in order to build

11· ·there at all, which included having to

12· ·environmentally blend in with the other residents

13· ·next to it, which resulted in the bank being built

14· ·from stone.

15· · · · · · And I've traveled around, even in Bel Air,

16· ·which is a business area, and there's very few

17· ·signs, if any, that large and that bright, even in

18· ·Bel Air.· And they are certainly not in Fallston.

19· · · · · · The shopping center, they have their signs

20· ·on the building, and then the small sign blends with

21· ·the environment.· It's not glaring, like the yellow
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·1· ·sign would be.· So I see no reason whatsoever for

·2· ·that to be increased in size.

·3· · · · Q.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No further questions of Ms.

·5· ·Harris.

·6· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Stover?

·7· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Mr. Kahoe, no questions.

·8· · · · · · If I could -- I don't want to interrupt

·9· ·anybody else, frankly.· If I could just make a

10· ·blanket objection to any testimony that goes beyond

11· ·the scope of tonight's hearing, which is the sign on

12· ·the building.

13· · · · · · If I could just make that blanket objection

14· ·now, as opposed to making it, if it comes up during

15· ·individual's testimony.

16· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Continuing objection

17· ·is noted.

18· · · · · · Mr. Young, your next witness.

19· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· I call Mr. Langrall.

20· · · · · · Are you available?· You came off mute for

21· ·second.
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·1· · · · · · · · MR. LANGRALL:· I had sent you an email,

·2· ·which, obviously, you didn't read, because it was

·3· ·just before the hearing, that, I think, what Beth

·4· ·Poggioli had stated was --

·5· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

·6· · · · Q.· State your name for the record, please.

·7· · · · A.· Clarke Langrall, 2622 Greene Road.

·8· · · · Q.· Mr. Langrall, what were you saying?

·9· · · · A.· I sent you an email just before the hearing

10· ·to tell you that what had been captured by Beth

11· ·Poggioli was sufficient and expressed my same

12· ·sentiments and feeling.

13· · · · Q.· Do you have anything you would like to add

14· ·at this time?

15· · · · A.· No, other than the fact that the signage in

16· ·the rest of the VB area on the south side of 152 and

17· ·165, there's no signage that exceeds more than the

18· ·smaller signage version that has been discussed with

19· ·the Dollar General sign.

20· · · · · · I also concur with the illumination

21· ·comments that were made as well.· It would be a

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880

ZONING CASE NO. 5939 ZONING HEARING
February 24, 2021

Irwin Reporting 410-494-1880
YVer1f



Page 75
·1· ·detriment to the community and an eyesore.

·2· · · · Q.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No further questions.

·4· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Stover?

·5· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· No questions.

·6· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, Mr.

·7· ·Langrall.

·8· · · · · · Next witness.

·9· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· I call Mr. Cyrus

10· ·Etemad-Moghadam.

11· · · · · · · · MR. ETEMAD-MOGHADAM:· I'm right here.

12· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

13· · · · Q.· Good evening, sir.· Thank you for asking

14· ·questions earlier.

15· · · · · · Did you have anything that you want to say

16· ·in regard to this application at this time?

17· · · · A.· Yeah, I do.· Just quickly, I think that

18· ·we're all on the same page in terms of things like

19· ·the fact that the property is unique.· So it's

20· ·understood.· And I'm sure it's not ideal for the

21· ·business.
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·1· · · · · · But the realty is, this is going to be a

·2· ·very large building, actually, the largest building

·3· ·in the area, nothing close to it.

·4· · · · · · And so the concept that the lack of a sign

·5· ·would be a deterrent would be, I believe, incorrect.

·6· ·I think it's really applicable here.

·7· · · · · · I do believe that a large yellow sign would

·8· ·be offensive.· I don't think that we should have to

·9· ·deal with something like this already, given the

10· ·fact that there are no other large signs in the

11· ·area, even on the other side of the road, which is

12· ·in the business section.

13· · · · · · And the last comment really is that in 2021

14· ·everybody is using mapping applications.· So we are

15· ·in a rural area.· People who are looking

16· ·specifically for a Dollar store, if it's built, will

17· ·have the ability to get to it with simple mapping.

18· · · · · · The sign will be pretty tall, at least 12

19· ·feet in my opinion, and I think the typical

20· ·doorjambs are 7-feet tall to start with.· So I don't

21· ·believe that there's a need for basically a New
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·1· ·York-style sign in the area.

·2· · · · Q.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No further questions.

·4· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Cross?· Mr. Stover?

·5· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Sorry.· It might help, if

·6· ·I unmute myself.

·7· · · · · · No cross.

·8· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· I call Ms. Beth Scheir.

10· · · · · · · · MS. SCHEIR:· Yes.

11· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

12· · · · Q.· Did you have anything you wanted to say in

13· ·testimony tonight?

14· · · · A.· Yes, please.

15· · · · · · As it relates to the signage --

16· · · · Q.· Could you say your name again, just for the

17· ·record, please?

18· · · · A.· Beth Scheir, S-C-H-E-I-R, 2814 Cross

19· ·Country Court, Fallston, Maryland 21047.

20· · · · Q.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · And you had the opportunity to hear the
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·1· ·Applicants' case tonight?

·2· · · · A.· I have.

·3· · · · Q.· In fact, you asked a couple questions as

·4· ·well?

·5· · · · A.· Yes, sir.

·6· · · · Q.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · I think the last question that you asked

·8· ·started to become a point that you wanted to make.

·9· · · · · · Could you tell the court what that was?

10· · · · A.· The last question that I asked was relevant

11· ·to the photographs that Mr. Taylor offered during

12· ·his testimony about surrounding properties and what

13· ·existed on them.

14· · · · · · He included property all that included

15· ·commercial uses.· He failed to include a photograph

16· ·directly to the rear of the parcel that would

17· ·include the Dollar General.· That property is, in

18· ·fact, residential.

19· · · · · · The topography at the back of this lot, if

20· ·you look at the "topo" lines on the drawing, it is a

21· ·severe grade directly down there.
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·1· · · · · · And the proposed free-standing sign, which

·2· ·supposedly can only be where it is going to be

·3· ·located because of the State right-of-way in the

·4· ·front would be directly adjacent Village Business

·5· ·uses and residential properties along Scarff Road,

·6· ·in my opinion.· I haven't done any measuring.

·7· · · · Q.· Okay.· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · Did you have anything else you wanted to

·9· ·say in regard to the application?

10· · · · A.· Yes, sir.· The Village Business-zoned area

11· ·is exceptional.· It is exceptional.· It is

12· ·exceptional for a reason.· It is unique.· That's Mr.

13· ·Taylor's word.· It is unique.· It is meant to be

14· ·unique.· It is zoned to be unique.· The site is

15· ·surrounded by businesses and residences, small

16· ·businesses.

17· · · · · · This is a relatively wide-open

18· ·intersection.· There's nothing to impact the sight

19· ·line to the front of a 9,100 square foot rectangular

20· ·building at all, nothing.

21· · · · · · There is no need for any signage larger
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·1· ·than what is allowed by Village Business zoning,

·2· ·including but not limited to the size, the color,

·3· ·the materials from which it is made and the location

·4· ·of the sign.

·5· · · · Q.· Thank you very much.

·6· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No further questions.

·7· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Stover?

·8· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· No questions.

·9· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, Ms.

10· ·Scheir.· Next witness.

11· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Ms. Comeau, I see that you

12· ·are here.· Did you have any anything you wanted to

13· ·say tonight?

14· · · · · · · · MS. COMEAU:· No, thank you.· No

15· ·comment.

16· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · Did anyone else who signed up to testify in

18· ·advance have anything they wanted to say in

19· ·testimony, who signed up in advance?

20· · · · · · Ms. Flasch, I'm sorry, you did speak with

21· ·me.
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·1· · · · · · I call Ms. Stephanie Flasch.

·2· · · · · · · · MS. FLASCH:· Hi.· Stephanie Flasch.

·3· ·F-L-A-S-C-H, and I'm at 1902 Norwood Court.· That's

·4· ·Fallston.

·5· · · · A.· I just wanted to comment that I oppose any

·6· ·sign variance for the Fallston Village Business

·7· ·area.

·8· · · · · · I moved into the area for the rural

·9· ·character, and I frequently go to Upper Crossroads

10· ·area for Basta Pasta, Savory, Courtland's, Fallston

11· ·Cleaners and other businesses to support those local

12· ·businesses in my community.

13· · · · · · I know these businesses are located there,

14· ·and I don't have a problem seeing any of the

15· ·businesses in the area, when I travel 152 or 165.

16· · · · · · And I oppose the sign variance proposed for

17· ·the Dollar General in order to preserve the rural

18· ·integrity of our community.

19· · · · Q.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Nothing further.

21· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· No cross.
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·1· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you for your

·2· ·testimony.

·3· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Does anyone else who signed

·4· ·up to testify in advance still desire to testify?

·5· · · · · · All right.

·6· · · · · · Mr. Goff, I know that you were interested

·7· ·in testifying tonight.· Are you still here?

·8· · · · · · · · MR. GOFF:· Yes, I am.· And I live at

·9· ·2901 Fallston Road.

10· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

11· · · · Q.· Can you state your full name, for the

12· ·record, please?

13· · · · A.· Excuse me?

14· · · · Q.· Your full name.

15· · · · A.· Jonathan Goff.

16· · · · Q.· How is Jonathan spelled?

17· · · · A.· How is it spelled?

18· · · · Q.· Jonathan; yes.

19· · · · A.· Yeah.· G-O-F-F.· Jonathan; J-O-N-A-T-H-A-N.

20· · · · Q.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · You've been very expressive many times.
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·1· ·What do you have to say?

·2· · · · A.· I know you're worried about my language.

·3· ·But the thing is that I oppose this sign variance

·4· ·because of what everybody else has already said

·5· ·already, as far as the rural integrity of the

·6· ·properties in the area around it.

·7· · · · · · I've been shown pictures of other Dollar

·8· ·General stores.· And I don't know if you can see

·9· ·this or not.· But this is the trash that's been left

10· ·at the other Dollar General stores.· And that's not

11· ·what our community is all about.· We're not into

12· ·trashing up the area with some business who wants to

13· ·walk in here and do whatever they want, once they

14· ·get established.

15· · · · · · And so on top of that, what I'm not seeing

16· ·is pictures of all the traffic that you've provided

17· ·for us.· The traffic is heavy on that intersection.

18· ·That entrance to that Dollar General store is going

19· ·to cause so many accidents.

20· · · · · · There's schools on this road.· I think we

21· ·have four elementary schools or four schools on that
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·1· ·152, I'm looking at.

·2· · · · · · Also, I was looking at the bright-colored

·3· ·yellow light illuminated that's going to bring in

·4· ·stink bugs.· And stink bugs are attracted to the

·5· ·yellow lights.· And that yellow light is going to

·6· ·bring all the stink bugs in this region, in this

·7· ·whole area.

·8· · · · · · And on top of that, this is also going to

·9· ·affect our property values.· I haven't seen a Dollar

10· ·General store yet that has been kept nice and neat

11· ·and clean.· And I've been around the country.· And

12· ·I've not seen not one Dollar General that's been a

13· ·clean store.· And that's not what this area is

14· ·about.

15· · · · · · We pay big property taxes in this region,

16· ·and we don't appreciate this.· This, to me, is just

17· ·not good for our area.· Everybody I've talked to

18· ·opposes this Dollar General store from even going

19· ·up.

20· · · · · · As far as the parking, the parking --

21· ·you've got the parking almost right on the side of
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·1· ·the road at the entrance.· And that's going to

·2· ·affect people backing up and lights and cars

·3· ·flipping around to get back out of the store.

·4· · · · · · The lights are going to be shining right

·5· ·directly in the faces of the cars that are at the

·6· ·intersections.· That's going to cause accidents.

·7· · · · · · I'm really worried about, you know, the

·8· ·safety of that intersection, because we've had so

·9· ·many accidents.· I've had so many cars and trucks

10· ·and vans land on my property, you know, just because

11· ·of this intersection as it is now.· Once they put

12· ·that -- if they put that store in, it's going to be

13· ·cause even more accidents, you know.

14· · · · · · And then we're all on well water.· What's

15· ·going to happen with an 18-wheeler loaded with some

16· ·chemical?· You know, there's already been an

17· ·incident there way back in the history that the

18· ·Harford County Health Department doesn't want to

19· ·talk about.

20· · · · · · You know, we had to deal with Exxon.· You

21· ·know, we lived off of bottled water for a year and a
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·1· ·half because of the Exxon leak at that intersection.

·2· ·They had to put special filters, you know, on all of

·3· ·our homes in the area.

·4· · · · · · You know, we've dealt with a lot of, you

·5· ·know, problems out of that particular lot and the

·6· ·stores and the businesses that have been at that

·7· ·lot.· So, you know, I think everybody --

·8· · · · · · And have you seen all the signs in the

·9· ·area?· I mean, everybody in the whole community,

10· ·they have signs.· We don't want this Dollar General.

11· ·They oppose the Dollar General store from even going

12· ·in.

13· · · · · · So I would like to speak with Mr. Young, if

14· ·he's representing the community, you know.· If you

15· ·could give me a call later on to discuss this

16· ·further.

17· · · · · · But, like I said, everybody in this area is

18· ·really upset about this Dollar General store.· They

19· ·don't want it.· Everybody I talk to says they don't

20· ·want this store to go in.· They don't have a good

21· ·reputation, from what I've seen.
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·1· · · · Q.· Thank you, Mr. Goff.

·2· · · · A.· All right.

·3· · · · Q.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Nothing further of this

·5· ·witness.

·6· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· No questions.

·7· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Goff, thank you

·8· ·for your testimony.

·9· · · · · · · · MR. GOFF:· You're welcome.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Jonathan Gunter?· Mr.

11· ·Gunter?

12· · · · · · · · MR. GUNTER:· Yes, I'm here.

13· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

14· · · · Q.· Could you state your name and address, for

15· ·the record, please?

16· · · · A.· Jonathan Gunter, G-U-N-T-E-R, 1201 Wild

17· ·Orchid Drive, Fallston, Maryland 21047.

18· · · · Q.· Thank you, Mr. Gunter.· You don't have an

19· ·opportunity to ask questions at this time.· But you

20· ·do have an opportunity to testify in response to

21· ·this application.
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·1· · · · A.· So listening to the proposal from Mr.

·2· ·Stover and Mr. Taylor with the pictures of how the

·3· ·signage would look, from what I heard was they took

·4· ·a white banner out to the property, stood there,

·5· ·took the picture, went back to their office and

·6· ·photo shopped the Dollar General logo onto that

·7· ·piece of paper.· That is manipulation of a photo.

·8· · · · · · If you know anything about the Photoshop,

·9· ·you can make anything look very fuzzy.· When you

10· ·shrink a logo down in size, the resolution becomes

11· ·fuzzy by itself.· That's in general.· I work with

12· ·dealing with that kind of work myself.

13· · · · · · When you try to make it larger, it can make

14· ·it look a lot brighter, a lot bigger.· And you go,

15· ·Oh, it's very nice.· So that was my concern; is they

16· ·photoshopped onto a picture.

17· · · · · · So, in my opinion, they manipulated a photo

18· ·that was put into evidence instead of actually

19· ·taking a picture of a sign that was made, held up so

20· ·it looked actual.· That's my basic concern.

21· · · · · · I'm not a fan of Dollar General.· But I'm
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·1· ·going to speak to the variance of it.· All of the

·2· ·other signs up there don't need to be that big.

·3· ·They are not that big.· Everybody can see the signs

·4· ·from the road.

·5· · · · · · However, my biggest concern was listening

·6· ·to their testimony, where they manipulated the

·7· ·picture and multiple manipulated pictures by using

·8· ·Photoshop to put their logo onto that white banner

·9· ·that they said was only a white banner they took out

10· ·there and put their logo on there by Photoshop.· So

11· ·it's a manipulation of the image.

12· · · · Q.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No further questions of

14· ·this witness.

15· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Stover?

16· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· No cross.

17· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, Mr.

18· ·Gunter.

19· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Is there anyone else who

20· ·hasn't had the opportunity to testify now that would

21· ·like to do so?
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·1· · · · · · · · (Unresponsive.)

·2· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Kahoe, I would like to

·3· ·note that there are a large number of people that

·4· ·are present, approximately half of the people, I

·5· ·believe, who were here and testified.· I believe the

·6· ·other half likely are here in opposition.· I would

·7· ·like it noted that they -- I see some nodding heads

·8· ·-- join in the opposition for similar reasons that

·9· ·were said.· And I do see Ms. Medvetz's -- sorry if I

10· ·messed that up -- hand raised.

11· · · · · · Christine Medvetz, would you like to

12· ·testify?

13· · · · · · · · MS. MEDVETZ:· Yeah.· And I didn't swear

14· ·in.· I'm sorry.

15· · · · · · · · (Witness Medvetz Sworn.)

16· · · · · · · · MS. METVETZ:· My name is Christine,

17· ·C-H-R-I-S-T-I-N-E, last name is Medvetz,

18· ·M-E-D-V-E-T-Z.· I'm at 2406 Trinity Place, Fallston.

19· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. YOUNG:

20· · · · Q.· Thank you.

21· · · · A.· I just have a question with regards to the
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·1· ·pictures that they are showing.

·2· · · · · · With the pictures that they showed, the

·3· ·property across the street, Savory Deli, and the

·4· ·pictures across the street where the Basta Pasta is,

·5· ·the hardware store, I'm not understanding how they

·6· ·can compare their sign to any of those, in that

·7· ·those are different zoning places.

·8· · · · · · A Village Business zone should not be

·9· ·compared to those businesses because it's not the

10· ·same thing.· They are zoned B1, and they are being

11· ·proposed as Village Business.

12· · · · · · That's all I have to say.

13· · · · Q.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Nothing further.

15· · · · · · I want to say thank you to everyone who

16· ·came out tonight.· Mr. Kahoe, we don't have any

17· ·further witnesses.

18· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Mr. Young, are you

19· ·able to read into the record the names of people who

20· ·were here and oppose and who have not, otherwise,

21· ·identified themselves?· I want to make sure
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·1· ·everybody is noted.

·2· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Yes, Your Honor.· Zonda

·3· ·Landis, Jeff Devack, Rose Wilcox, Linda Ziskind,

·4· ·Patrick Neary, Ryan Manaear, Chris Richardson and

·5· ·Christina Straub.· I'm sure I still managed to mess

·6· ·one of those up.

·7· · · · · · But I think all the people who said your

·8· ·own names, that were more difficult to pronounce

·9· ·than what I just read.

10· · · · · · Those were all signed up in opposition,

11· ·Mr. Kahoe.

12· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, Mr.

13· ·Young.· I've seen a whole series of windows coming

14· ·through of people who were noting their opposition.

15· · · · · · I don't know if those folks can hear me.  I

16· ·guess they can.· That's not part of the record.· So

17· ·you need to indicate verbally or at the very least

18· ·send an email to Mrs. Smith at her office.· Just

19· ·state who you are and that you are opposed after the

20· ·hearing.

21· · · · · · You should be identifying yourselves during
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·1· ·the hearing.· Just being here tonight is not

·2· ·sufficient.· We need to get something on the record

·3· ·that you are opposed.

·4· · · · · · Yes?

·5· · · · · · · · MR. STRAUB:· This is Josh Straub, 2342

·6· ·Willow Vale Drive in Fallston.· I absolutely oppose

·7· ·--

·8· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· Can we just

·9· ·state that now, if we didn't talk yet?

10· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Hold on one moment.· Mr.

11· ·Straub first.

12· · · · · · · · MR. STRAUB:· Sure.· I would just argue

13· ·that the argument for necessity for the variance of

14· ·the sign would mean that passerbys are going to

15· ·frequent a Dollar General.

16· · · · · · I would argue that people who are going to

17· ·Dollar General are conscientiously traveling to

18· ·Dollar General.· And if they're driving down 152 or

19· ·165 and they need a snack, they can stop at Savory

20· ·Deli or 7-Eleven.· So signage is only -- would need

21· ·a business that people aren't, you know, going to
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·1· ·intentionally.

·2· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Kahoe, there are

·3· ·additional people who are in the chat at present

·4· ·today that I didn't have ahead of time.· I will add

·5· ·their names.

·6· · · · · · Mr. Ryan Shaw --

·7· · · · · · · · MR. COLLINS:· Robert Collins.

·8· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Robert Collins.· Barry

·9· ·Gabler.

10· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· Completely

11· ·opposed.· Completely opposed.

12· · · · · · · · (Reporter clarification.)

13· · · · · · · · MR. COLLINS:· Robert Collins.

14· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Give us your

15· ·address, sir.

16· · · · · · · · MR. COLLINS:· 2666 Baldwin Mill Road,

17· ·Baldwin, Maryland 21013.· Less than a mile from this

18· ·proposed site.

19· · · · · · I've spoken with several people, emailed

20· ·everyone in the Harford County Government.· Everyone

21· ·points fingers saying that they were just following
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·1· ·the letter of the law, allowing this to happen.

·2· · · · · · So all I'm asking is to follow the letter

·3· ·of the law, when it comes to these variances.· And

·4· ·that's it.· They shouldn't be allowed to get a step

·5· ·up on the local businesses.· That's not fair.

·6· · · · · · As far as being able to see that sign, I

·7· ·was able to see that sign real easy that you guys

·8· ·had holding up.· There was no problem at all.

·9· · · · · · I am completely opposed to this.· It

10· ·shouldn't be going in.

11· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Chris Richardson, do you

12· ·have anything to say other than that you're opposed

13· ·and agree with what's been said previously?

14· · · · · · · · MR. RICHARDSON:· I just want to voice

15· ·my --

16· · · · · · Well, this is Chris Richardson, 2403 Derby

17· ·Drive, Fallston, Maryland.

18· · · · · · I just wanted to voice my opposition to

19· ·this zoning variance request.· They selected the

20· ·property.· The property has its characteristics.

21· ·And the zoning is the zoning, which they were well
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·1· ·aware of.

·2· · · · · · I don't see any reason why this zoning

·3· ·variance request should be granted.

·4· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · Ms. Jen Schauman.· Ms. Tana Hope.

·6· · · · · · · · MS. HOPE:· This is Tana Hope.

·7· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Hi, Ms. Hope.· Did you want

·8· ·to say anything other than that you agree with the

·9· ·previous Protestants would have testified?

10· · · · · · · · MS. HOPE:· Nothing further.· I just am

11· ·completely opposed to the sign variance.

12· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Thank you, Ms. Hope.

13· · · · · · · · MS. HOPE:· Yes.

14· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· And I believe that's

15· ·everyone that commented on the chat as well, Mr.

16· ·Kahoe.

17· · · · · · Thank you.

18· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Ms. Schummer, your

19· ·mic is on.· Do you want to say something?

20· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· Go ahead.

21· · · · · · · · MS. SCHUMMER:· My name is Liz Schummer.
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·1· ·I am at 3004 Suffolk Lane.· And I just wanted to

·2· ·confirm my opposition along with all the others this

·3· ·evening, officially.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Okay.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· I just want to

·6· ·confirm mine, too.

·7· · · · · · · · (Reporter clarification.)

·8· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Sorry.· Who is this?

·9· · · · · · · · MS. McCARTHY:· Michelle McCarthy.

10· ·M-C-C-A-R-T-H-Y, 2719 Park Heights Drive, Baldwin,

11· ·Maryland 21013.· And I am completely opposed to the

12· ·additional size of the sign.

13· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, ma'am.

14· · · · · · · · MR. GABLER:· Last one.· Barry Gabler;

15· ·B-A-R-R-Y.· Last name Gabler; G-A-B-L-E-R.· I'm at

16· ·2825 Glen Keld Court.· I also oppose the variance of

17· ·the sign because of the Village Business zoning, as

18· ·folks have previously stated.

19· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thank you, sir.

20· · · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:· Excuse me.· Do

21· ·you need my address?· This is Tana Hope.
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·1· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Yes, you should give

·2· ·us your address.

·3· · · · · · · · MS. HOPE:· It is 2243 Engel Road.

·4· ·Engle is E-N-G-L-E.· That's in Fallston 21047.

·5· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Mr. Kahoe, Carol Knickman

·6· ·and Ms. Denise Brant have also expressed opposition

·7· ·in the chat.· That is all the Protestants, I

·8· ·believe, that we have this evening.

·9· · · · · · Thank you.

10· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Okay, Mr. Young.

11· ·Thank you.

12· · · · · · Mr. Stover, is there anything in conclusion

13· ·from you?

14· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· I was going to ask two or

15· ·three questions of Mr. Taylor with respect to the

16· ·lighting issue, if I may.

17· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Go ahead.

18· ·EXAMINATION BY MR. STOVER:

19· · · · Q.· Mr. Taylor, you heard the testimony

20· ·regarding concerns about lighting from the expanded

21· ·sign.
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·1· · · · · · Again, for clarity of the record, how far

·2· ·off of the street of 152, will the sign be located?

·3· · · · A.· The sign would be 190 feet off the edge of

·4· ·the road which, if you think about it, is about

·5· ·two-thirds the length of a football field.

·6· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thanks, Mr. Taylor.

·7· ·We got that.· Go ahead, Mr. Stover.· Next question.

·8· · · · Q.· (By Mr. Stover) Mr. Taylor, you did testify

·9· ·previously that, in your opinion, there would not be

10· ·any adverse impacts on noise, light, dust, glare.

11· · · · · · Is that because the building is so far off,

12· ·like you said, two-thirds of a football field off of

13· ·Maryland Route 152?

14· · · · A.· That's correct.· That's my opinion.

15· · · · Q.· And, finally, to tie it up, again, the

16· ·Applicant will be required to submit a lighting plan

17· ·going through the DAC process?

18· · · · A.· Yes.

19· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· No further questions,

20· ·Mr. Kahoe.

21· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Thanks, Mr. Stover.
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·1· ·I assume there's nothing from you, Mr. Young?

·2· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· No.

·3· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Okay, folks, that's

·4· ·going to conclude the hearing.

·5· · · · · · So let me tell you where we're going to go

·6· ·from here.· First of all, make sure that Mrs. Smith

·7· ·has everyone's emails.· Hopefully, she has most

·8· ·emails.· But she doesn't know necessarily who you

·9· ·are by looking at the screen.· She is responsible

10· ·for sending out my recommended decision.· So make

11· ·sure she has your email.· When the decision is made

12· ·and it final, everybody will get a copy of that

13· ·decision.

14· · · · · · No, that's important because the appeal

15· ·time is supposed to run from that decision.· So if

16· ·anyone who participated in the hearing tonight and

17· ·whose address we have, will have a right to ask the

18· ·County Council to review my decision, if you're not

19· ·happy with it.· And this, of course, goes for the

20· ·Applicant as well.

21· · · · · · What I will be preparing is what's called a
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·1· ·recommended decision.· If recommended, it becomes

·2· ·final, if it is not appealed to and changed by the

·3· ·Council.

·4· · · · · · So if it is appealed, the Council has a

·5· ·right to and will review the record, which is what

·6· ·we are making tonight.· There will be no new

·7· ·testimony, no new evidence.

·8· · · · · · Harford County Council will review the

·9· ·testimony and decide if my recommendation and

10· ·decision is right, wrong or indifferent.

11· · · · · · So that's the process we're going to engage

12· ·in.· So make sure Mrs. Smith has your contact

13· ·information.

14· · · · · · Now, counsel, what's your preference?· Does

15· ·anybody want to submit a written brief for argument?

16· ·I'm not necessarily asking for it.· I guess, Mr.

17· ·Stover, how do you feel about that?

18· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· I would not be opposed to

19· ·that.· I know I rattled off a lot of codes and

20· ·different provisions during both my opening and

21· ·during cross of Mr. Culver.· I promise it will five
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·1· ·pages or less.· But I would like the opportunity to

·2· ·do that.

·3· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· It might be a good

·4· ·idea, if you did that.

·5· · · · · · How long do you need to submit something in

·6· ·writing?

·7· · · · · · · · MR. STOVER:· Ten days.

·8· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· Ten days.

·9· · · · · · And, Mr. Young, we'll let you respond.

10· ·That's our rule, right?· Now we have a new rule on

11· ·that, right?· You will have ten days to respond --

12· · · · · · · · MR. YOUNG:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · · HEARING EXAMINER:· -- to Mr. Stover's

14· ·brief with your comments.

15· · · · · · Okay.· Questions?

16· · · · · · · · (Unresponsive.)

17· · · · · · All right.· Thank you, everybody, for

18· ·sharing with us this evening.· Stay safe and good

19· ·night.

20· · · · · · · · (Whereupon the hearing was concluded at

21· ·8:18 p.m.)
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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·CERTIFICATE

·2· ·STATE OF MARYLAND

·3· ·County OF BALTIMORE, to wit:

·4· · · · · · I, Ann M. Lavoie, a Notary Public of the

·5· ·State of Maryland, County of Baltimore, do hereby

·6· ·certify that the remote hearing was held according

·7· ·to law.

·8· · · · · · I further certify that the hearing was

·9· ·recorded stenographically by me and this transcript

10· ·is a true record of the proceedings.

11· · · · · · I further certify that I am not of counsel

12· ·to any of the parties, nor in any way interested in

13· ·the outcome of this action.

14· · · · · · As witness my hand and notarial seal this

15· ·30th day of May, 2021.

16
· · · · · · · · · · · ·_______________________
17· · · · · · · · · · ·Ann M. Lavoie
· · · · · · · · · · · ·Notary Public
18
· · · · · · · · · · · ·My Commission Expires:
19· · · · · · · · · · ·October 17, 2021

20

21
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